
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 26 August 2021 

 

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES  
COMMITTEE 

On: Monday 6 September 2021 At: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The 

Council is also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used 
are Covid secure and that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public 

will be able to attend the meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public 

participation. Any members of the public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch 
through the Councils YouTube Channel https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

To: Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley, 
K James, N Laws, R Lock and D McGeough 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 
 
 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 9 August 

2021 (Pages 3 - 6) 

3.   Action List (Page 7) 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube


 
 

 

4.   Public Contributions  

 Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme.  .(The deadline for 

registering  to speak is by 2pm Thursday 2 September 2021. To register please email 
dem.services@torridge.gov.uk). 

 

5.   Forward Plan (Page 8) 

6.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 

nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

7.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II  

8.   Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the 

Chair and the Committee  

9.   Biosphere Nature Recovery Plan & Declaration (Pages 9 - 15) 

 To receive the report of the Public Health and Housing Manager 
 

10.   Freshspring Bond (Pages 16 - 33) 

 To receive the report and appendices of the Operational Services Manager 
 

11.   Leisure contractor pricing proposals 2021/22 (Pages 34 - 39) 

 To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place 
 

12.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

 There are no Part II items 

 

Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey 

 

 

mailto:dem.services@torridge.gov.uk


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 
 

Monday, 9 August 2021 - 10.00 am 

 
PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 

 Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillors C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley, 

K James and R Lock 

 
 

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Chief Executive 
 S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 

 S Kearney - Head of Communities & Place 
 D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 

 S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer 
 J Williams - Public Health & Housing Manager 

 

 Councillor C Leather  
 

149.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Laws, McGeough and 

Brenton. 
 

150.    MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 28 JUNE 2021  
 

It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Christie and - 
 

Resolved:   That the Minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2021 be signed as a 
correct record. 
 

(Vote:  For - Unanimous)  
 

 
Matters Arising: 
 

Minute No. 142 – Northern Devon: A Road to Recovery 
 

Councillor Christie referred to his proposal and asked if Geoffrey Cox MP had been 
contacted regarding concerns in the rise of house prices locally.   The Chief 
Executive said he is due to meet with the MP and will raise the matter with him. 

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

151.    ACTION LIST  
 

The action list was updated – 
 

Minute 124 – The Head of Communities & Place reported that as part of the 
Burrows Centre project, a storage container had been sited at Wilkeys Field car 
park - it will now be brought back to Riverbank car park.   Following the submission 

of a planning application, Officers were advised this was not required as it could be 
carried out under PD. The application was withdrawn.   Action completed. 

 
152.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  

 

There were no public contributions. 
 

153.    FORWARD PLAN  
 

The Head of Communities & Place advised that a recommendation from Harbour 

Board – return of Bond for Fresh Spring - to be included on the Forward Plan for 
the September meeting. 

 
The Forward Plan was noted.   
 

154.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 
related were under discussion. 
 

155.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II  
 

  There were no Part II items. 
 

 

156.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 
 

157.    ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS GRANT AND BUSINESS SUPPORT IN 
NORTHERN DEVON  
 

Councillor James declared a personal interest – Member on ND+. 
 

 
The Finance Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was to present to 

Members a proposal for a Northern Devon Business Support Scheme and to seek 
approval to allocate £100,000 from the Additional Restrictions Grant Discretionary 
fund for its delivery. 

 
The Finance Manager confirmed that ND Council had resolved on 2 August to 

support the proposal with £100,000 from their ARG allocation.    

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

 
There were concerns raised regarding the monies going to ND+ for advice as   

Members felt it would be more beneficial for businesses to receive the monies 
rather than advice.   The Chief Executive explained that the £200,000 is for the time 

ND+ will spend giving advice to businesses and for those businesses who are not 
entitled to funding it will be seen as wider support for them.   It will also include 
giving advice to get businesses started and to support in the preparation of 

business plans. 
 

The Finance Manager confirmed this funding will be ring fenced for Torridge 
businesses only.     
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hodson, seconded by Councillor Lock and – 
 

Resolved: 
 
That the use of £100,000 from the ARG funding to deliver the ND+ business 

support scheme as set out in Appendix A attached to the report be approved. 
 

(Vote:  For 6, Against 1, Abstentions 2) 
 

158.    REFUGEE RESETTLEMENT AND AFGHAN RELOCATION SCHEME.  
 

The purpose of the report, presented by the Public Health & Housing Manager, 

was: 
 

1. To seek an extension in our participation in the UK Government Refugee 

Resettlement Scheme 
2. To advise Members of the Afghan Relocation Scheme and determine 

whether we extend our offer to this additional scheme 
 
When debating this matter, the issue of the housing crisis in Torridge and 

elsewhere, and the concerns at how local people would view this Scheme were 
raised.  The Public Health & Housing Manager advised that the Organisers are 

confident they can source the two properties and will have the support from 
landlords.    
 

Following a question concerning the financial situation, Members were informed 
that regarding this Scheme it is still under negotiation.  The financial information 

has still not yet been determined by Devon County Council. 
 
Councillor Bushby asked how many people are on the housing list looking for a 

property, the Public Health & Housing Manager did not have that information too 
hand and agreed to send it to him. 

 
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Christie and - 
 

Resolved: 
 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

1. That an extension in our previously stated commitment to participate in the 
UK Government Refugee Resettlement Scheme be approved and that we 

support the allocation of one property to be made in 2021 and 2022. 
 

2. That the above commitment be extended to participants of the Afghan 
Relocation Scheme, subject to the necessary risk mitigation measures being 
put in place and agreed through the Devon Resettlement Group (in 

agreement with our s151 Officer). 
 

(Vote:  For 8, Against 1) 
 
 

159.    BUDGET SURPLUS - RECOMMENDATION FROM INTERNAL OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

The Finance Manager & S151 Officer gave a slide presentation and explained that 
the purpose of the report was for Members to confirm the recommendation from 

Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee that the 2020/21 surplus be set aside to a 
leisure reserve. 

 
Following a brief discussion, it was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by 
Councillor Bushby and - 

 
Resolved: 

 
That the setting aside of the surplus from 2020/21 into a Leisure Reserve be 
approved. 

 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.00am and closed at 10.50am. 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  
 

 

Page 6



ACTION LIST 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE – 9 August 2021 

Minute 

No. 

Action By Who Date 

Contacted 

Comments Completed 

150 SH to discuss with Geoffrey 
Cox MP the concerns with 

regard to the rising house 
prices in the area 

SH    

158 Cllr Bushby asked how many 
were on the housing list 
looking for a property.  Jan W 

agreed to send this info to 
him. 

Jan W    

      

      

 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2021/22 
 

Leadership 
 

8 June 21 13 July 21 24 August 21 5 Oct 21 23 Nov 21 11 Jan 22 1 March 22 5 April 22 

         
Community 

& Resources 
(Mondays) 

28 June 21 26 July 21 
2 August 2021 

6 Sept 21 18 Oct 21 6 Dec 21 24 Jan 22 14 March 22 25 April 22 

Finance         

Performance 
 

        

 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pensions 
Discretion Policy 

(DH) 
 

Westward Ho! 
Hotel site – 

Amend Covenant 
(temporary bar) 

(SD) 
 

ND Recovery 
Prospectus 

 
Urgent Decisions 
– Welcome Back 

Fund 
 

 
Leadership only 

 
Strategic Plan 

2020-2023 
Delivery Plan + 5 
Business Plans 

(Jon W) 
 

Additional 
Restriction Grant 
Business Support 

Proposal (SK) 
 

Rec from Int O&S 
re: Surplus – to be 

set aside for 
leisure service 

 
Afghan Relocation 

Scheme (SH) 
 
 
 
 
 

Nature Recovery 
plan (Jan W) 

 
Rec. from 

Harbour Board 
re return of Bond 
to Fresh Spring 

(RH) 
 

1610 Charge 
Increases 

 
 
 

Isaac’s Yard 
(Planning App if 
Bid successful) 

(SK) 
 

The Globe – 
financial decision 

(CF/SK) 
 

The Plough 
Update 

 
 

LEADERSHIP 
ONLY - Business 

Plan – Property 
 

 
PART II 

 
Bideford Land 

acquisition - EC 
 

Hatchmoor Land 
Disposal 

Bideford Football 
Club (AR) 

 
PART II 

Rec. from Harbour 
Board 

Re:  Moorings 
 

Bradworthy – 
Public toilets (AR) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget Special 
31 Jan 33 

  

 

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 

Report by: Public Health and Housing Manager 

To:   Community and Resources Committee 

Subject:  Biosphere Nature Recovery Plan & Declaration 

Date:  6th September 2021      Ref: 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  

1. To make Members aware that the North Devon Biosphere have published a 

Nature Recovery Plan, and to seek approval to sign the Declaration. 

 

1    INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 Both nationally and within northern Devon, it is recognised that our wildlife is a 

shadow of its former glory. Many species are in long-term decline and we 
have lost many important and keystone species. Today, the UK is among the 
most nature-depleted countries on Earth. Nature has been, and continues to 

be, restricted into smaller and smaller fragments of suitable habitat due to the 
destruction of wildlife habitats and intensification of land use. Climate change 

is exacerbating these problems. 
 

1.2 Our natural environment can no longer guarantee the multiple benefits it 

provides through ecosystem services, for our food and water security, health 
and wellbeing and for tackling the immense threat of climate change. Both the 
rivers Taw and Torridge are failing ecological and chemical standards, 

revealing that land use and activities in their catchments are not sustainable. 
 

1.3 However, there is still an opportunity to support and facilitate nature‟s 
recovery. One of the Biosphere Reserve‟s purposes is to be able to test 
innovative approaches for living sustainably as an exemplar for sustainable 

development. As such, a draft Nature Recovery Plan has been prepared by 
the Nature Improvement Group of the Biosphere Reserve Partnership as its 

response to the global ecological emergency [accessible at 
https://www.northdevonbiosphere.org.uk/nature-recovery-plan.html ]. 

 

1.4 The plan covers the terrestrial parts of the North Devon Biosphere Reserve, 
which includes much of the Torridge district. It sets out a Vision for nature‟s 

recovery across northern Devon by 2030 (see the Appendix to this report), in 
line with Government commitments, and the priority actions required from 
2021-25 to move towards that Vision. It is proposed that the actions, and 

progress against them, will be reviewed in 2025. It is a living document that 
will be updated as new data becomes available. 

 

1.5 The plan‟s focus is on restoring existing nature habitats to good condition, and 
ensuring connectivity between them, rather than encouraging significant 

changes in land use (e.g. from agricultural use to wildlife management) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 9

https://www.northdevonbiosphere.org.uk/nature-recovery-plan.html


 

1.6 The draft Nature Recovery Plan was published on 6th July and is subject to 

public consultation until 15th August 2021. 

 

1.7 This Nature Recovery Plan sets out to „turn the tide‟ and facilitate nature‟s 
recovery across northern Devon. It focusses on restoring existing habitats to 
good condition and to making connections between them, rather than 

promoting significant changes to land use. It requires a combined effort by 
everyone in partnership with each other to engage through their choices and 

actions. This applies to local councils, local businesses, schools and 
community groups in their roles as land managers and policy makers, as well 
as to individual consumers. The plan also proposes to prioritise, target and 

coordinate our combined efforts towards achieving this vision.  

 

1.8 A Nature Recovery Declaration has also been prepared (see Appendix) 
seeking all organisations, businesses and individuals to sign up to actions 
within their control and responsibility that would contribute towards achieving 
this vision. Signing the Declaration does not commit us to achieving a 
binding recommendation or target but is a pledge to work towards the 

Vision. 

 
 
2  REPORT 

 

Nature Recovery Plan 

 
2.1  This Biosphere Nature Recovery Plan focuses on five key land types, which 

together cover the majority of northern Devon. 
a) Coast 

b) Grassland and Arable 
c) Towns and Villages 
d) Trees, Woodlands and Hedges 

e) Wetlands and Waterbodies 
 

2.2  Within the section for each land types 
a) Part I sets out a vision for 2030, followed by a description of the scope and 

location of the land type;  

b) Part II identifies priority actions for nature‟s recovery, which are split into 
habitat-related actions, species-related actions and enabling actions, 

together with monitoring and research priorities; and  
c) Part III sets out supporting information including the importance of that 

habitat type for nature, an estimated baseline condition assessment and 

perceived trends, as well as identifying root causes of decline and potential 
solutions to address them. Achievements over the last 10 years are also 

recognised. 
 
2.3 For each of the actions listed in Part II, a lead organisation is identified, together 

with an estimated cost for undertaking or facilitating the work. Some actions 
have existing resources or are part of existing workloads. The source of any 

Page 10



additional funding to facilitate and undertake these additional actions is not yet 
identified. 

 
2.4  District Councils across the Biosphere Reserve are identified as the lead 

partner or a supporting partner for several actions, primarily within the Towns 
and Villages section. In most instances the actions are being undertaken or are 
planned to be undertaken anyway; or could be accommodated and facilitated 

within existing workloads, such as the proposed update of the joint Local Plan 
or emerging Biodiversity Net Gain Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
2.5 There are also identified actions for the District Councils in the Coast section 

relating to reducing disturbance at the high tide roosts around the Taw-Torridge 

estuary. These could be addressed through a Public Spaces Protection Order 
(PSPO), or through an education campaign. The Coast Section also 

incorporates the proposed Nature Recovery Strategy for the North Devon Coast 
AONB. 

 

2.6  Whilst some actions within these sections are already starting to be delivered, 
the actions are intended to be challenging but achievable. The actions are 

aspirational but are not set as binding targets that must be met by a partner 
organisation. Rather they are intended to be aspirational targets or visions to 
which all partner organisations can seek to contribute towards.  

 
2.7  The Nature Recovery Plan is considered to complement and help to deliver 

some of the objectives in the Council‟s corporate plan and in our Carbon, 
Environment and Biodiversity Plan. It will also contribute to achieving the 
Government‟s 25 Year Environment Plan “A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to 

Improve the Environment”. It will also contribute to the Devon Nature Recovery 
Strategy that is being prepared in response to the Environment Bill. 

 
Nature Recovery Declaration 

 

2.8  The Nature Recovery Declaration accompanies the Nature Recovery Plan. This 
is not part of the wider consultation, but there is an invitation for any 

organisation or individual across northern Devon to sign up to the Declaration 
and to pledge to undertake a small number of actions. The list of actions differs 
between individuals and different types of organisations. Cumulatively, enough 

people and organisations undertaking these actions will contribute significantly 
towards delivering the vision and meeting the actions set out in the Nature 

Recovery Plan. The number and scope of the declarations made will also 
provide a good indicator of the level and range of support for the vision and 
aspirations of the draft Nature Recovery Plan. 

 
2.9  For Councils, the list of potential actions that the signatory can pledge to 

undertake are:  
 

1) Help nature to recover on land over which we have responsibility or influence 

by creating new habitats and through nature-friendly management of public 
spaces and verges, working with local communities. 

 

Page 11



2) Seek opportunities for net nature gain in all of our policies, procedures, plans, 
operations and decisions. 

 
3) Ensure the principles of building with nature are incorporated into new 

housing developments  
 

4) Encourage our members, residents and staff to individually pledge their 

support for this Declaration and share it with their family and friends.  
 

5) Carry out our duty to have regard for conserving biodiversity across the 
Biosphere, aligning with Nature Recovery Plan priorities. 
 

6) Lead, support and collaborate as appropriate to help deliver nature recovery 
plan actions for which we are named and, where necessary, endeavour to utilise 

resources to do so. 
 
Members can choose which of these actions they wish the Council to pledge 

support for. 
 

2.10  All of these actions are considered to be appropriate and should be achievable 
for Torridge District Council. For example, the second and third points could be 
incorporated into and partly delivered through the proposed new Local Plan, if 

Members agree. Similarly, as other Council strategies such as housing, 
procurement, corporate etc are reviewed, there will be opportunities to embed 

these actions within them. Officers consider that the Council could and should 
be able to sign up to this declaration. 

 

2.11 This report has been reviewed and approved by the Member Climate Working 
Group. 

 
3   IMPLICATIONS 

 

Legal implications 
 

 There are no binding actions within the Nature Recovery Plan or Declaration. 
 
Financial and Human Resources implications 

 
 There are no direct financial or staffing costs associated with any decision to 

respond to the draft Nature Recovery Plan consultation and/or sign the Nature 
Recovery Declaration. The opportunities for addressing the actions in the 
proposed Nature Recovery Plan should be able to be considered through 

existing and future workloads, such as the revised Local Plan. Bringing future 
grounds maintenance back into the Council will provide greater flexibility to 

accommodate some of the proposed actions on the Council‟s own land, such 
as tree planting. 
 

Sustainability/biodiversity implications 

 The proposed Nature Recovery Plan and the Nature Recovery Declaration 

would have a positive impact on nature and biodiversity across North Devon. 

Page 12



Other sustainability implications (social, economic and environmental) are likely 
to be broadly positive (such as health and wellbeing, and opportunities for 

tourism) or generally neutral. 

Equality/Diversity 

 

There are not considered to be any negative equality impacts arising from the 
nature recovery plan. The plan does not contain any formal policies and 

focuses on improving nature and biodiversity across the area, which would 
benefit everyone. 

Risk Management 

 N/A 
 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 

N/A 

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 

N/A 

Climate Change 

 

The links between biodiversity and climate change are considered in the recently 

adopted Carbon, Environment and Biodiversity Plan for Torridge. Managing and 
protecting biodiversity will mitigate the negative impacts of climate change and 
help humans adapt to it; policies and actions aiming at limiting the effects of 

climate change will contribute to the protection of biodiversity. 

 

Lead Member Views – Cllr Hames 

 

Studies have revealed that over the last thirty years there has been a 45 per cent 

decline of once common butterflies in the UK and 80 per cent decline of habitat 
specific species. Over the same period there has been a decrease of 44 million wild 

birds and huge loss of vital habitats such as ponds, meadows, woods, hedgerows, 
wetland and other contributors to biodiversity. The Nature Recovery Plan and 
Declaration are therefore highly important initiatives designed to encourage the 

whole community and its organisations to work to reverse this tragic decline in UK 
wildlife. I look forward to our Council actively participating in this process 

 

4 CONCLUSIONS 

 

4.1 The Nature Recovery Plan offers us an opportunity to progress and deliver a 
number of commitments made within our recently adopted Carbon, 

Environment and Biodiversity Plan. It provides a framework of partnership 
working to achieve our ambitions and an opportunity to work closely with a 

Page 13



globally recognised Northern Devon based organisation committed to 
enhancing the biodiversity of the area.  
 

5 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
5.1  To authorise the Sustainability and Climate Officer to respond to the draft 

Nature Recovery Plan by endorsing and supporting the proposed vision and 

actions within it. 
 

5.2  To sign the Nature Recovery Declaration and agreeing to progress the 
associated actions identified for Councils. 

 

5.3 To encourage and invite all members and staff to pledge their support for this 
Declaration as individuals, and to share it with their family and friends where 

appropriate. 
 
6   SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
6.1    Consultations: Operational Services Manager, Major Projects & Estates 

Manager, Public Health & Housing Manager, Development Manager, Senior 
Planning Policy Officer, Property Manager, Major Projects & Estates Engineer, 
Northam Burrows Lead Ranger. 

 
6.2    Contact Officer: Janet Williams Public Health and Housing Manager.  

 
6.3    The following background papers have been used in the preparation of this 

report:  

 North Devon Biosphere Strategy for Sustainable Development 2014-
2024 

 North Devon and Torridge Local Plan 2011 – 2031 (adopted October 
2018) 

 A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment (HM 
Government, 2018) 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 14



Appendix One 

 
 

Our Vision for nature in the North Devon UNESCO Biosphere 

 

By 2030, nature is recovering across northern Devon. There is more wildlife-rich 
habitat for us all to enjoy - covering 30% of the land area – in our fields and woods, 

on the moors and coast, along our rivers and across the sea. Wildlife has the space 
it needs to flourish. Thriving farming, fishing and forestry are helping nature to 

recover right across the Biosphere area. Communities, councils and businesses are 
putting nature back into our towns and villages. Declining species like salmon, 
hedgehog, cuckoo, skylark, lapwing, swift and house martin are recovering – and 

once again there are myriads of wildflowers and insects to enjoy in the countryside 
and marine wildlife is thriving. Ambitious projects have helped bring back icons like 

beaver, pine marten, chough, white-tailed eagle and osprey. Our quality of life, the 
economy and our response to climate change are stronger for it. More is required, 
but we are proud to be playing our part in tackling the global ecological emergency. 

 
 

Page 15



 
  

Report : Operational Services Manager 

To:  Community and Resources Committee  

Subject: Freshspring Bond 

Date: 6th September 2021   

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:    

  
For members to consider the recommendation of the Bideford Harbour Board Working Group and 
return a £3,000 bond to the SS Freshspring Society to enable further improvements to the ship 
 
 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 

The SS Freshspring was built in 1946 and is the only surviving example of the 14 
Freshwater class carriers and of a small steam driven cargo ship of her day. She is 
recognised as being of national historical significance and has been placed on the National 
Register of Historic vessels.  
 
In 2016 an agreement was made between Torridge District Council and the Freshspring 
Trust for the vessel to have a long-term berth in the Bideford Harbour. This was to enable 
the Trust to restore the vessel back to working condition. Due to the condition the vessel at 
that time the authority required a bond in case the ship became unseaworthy while in the 
Bideford Harbour. 

 
 

2. REPORT 
 

A request has been made by the by Mr John Puddy who is the Chairman of the Freshspring 
Trust for the bond to be returned to the Trust. This would further fund the project to help 
continue to improve the vessel back to its original form and allow for it to be open to the 
public.  
 
Since arriving in Bideford five years ago significant work has been undertaken in restoring 
the Freshspring and this has been undertaken by many volunteers as well as local 
businesses. The overall condition of the vessel has improved significantly since its arrival, 
which was the initial concern and why the bond was initially requested by the authority. 
When the agreement between the authority and the Freshspring Society was being drafted 
the sum of nine thousand pounds was required to be paid into a bond by the society which 
would be jointly held by TDC and the Freshspring Society. This would be paid in three 
annual instalments of three thousand pounds.  
 
Only one instalment has ever been received by the trust and has not been pursued by the 
authority. The sum to be returned if agreed by members would be for three thousand pounds 
and members need to decide whether they are confident that the restoration will continue for 
the bond to be returned or that it should be paid in full. 
 
At the 24th June 2021 Bideford Harbour Board, members agreed the bond should be 
returned to the Fresh spring Trust to enable further repair work to be undertaken.  
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 10



 
  

 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Financial Implications 

 

No known financial implications arising at the time of writing this report. 
 

 
     Human Resources Implications 

 

No known resource implications arising from this report. 
 
 

     Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 

 
The Harbour Authority is committed to working with colleagues and Partner organisations in 
supporting all relevant environmental protection legislation. 

 
 

     Equality/Diversity 
 

No other vessel within the Harbour jurisdiction has been asked to provide a bond while 
mooring within the Harbour area. 
 

     Risk Management 
 

There is a risk that once the bond is removed the financial burden would pass to Torridge 
District Council to remove the SS Freshspring if it were to fall into disrepair. While this is 
unlikely to happen, It would be prudent that the Harbour Board receive annual updates from 
the trust on work undertaken. In addition, the authority as part of the agreement (section 4) 
requires the trust to have insurance and indemnify Torridge against all losses, liabilities, 
costs, and claims while the vessel is in the jurisdiction of the harbour Authority.  
 
 

     Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 

Bideford Harbour Authority seeks to comply with all Torridge District Council policies and 
Strategies. 
 

 
 
 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Bideford Harbour Board Working Group recommend to Community and Resources Committee 
that: 
 
1. The £3,000 bond be returned to the Freshspring trust on the condition that annual 

inspections /surveys undertaken by the trust and the Harbour Master to ensure the vessel 
does not deteriorate which would be to the detriment to the harbour area.   Condition reports 
should be presented at the end of the reporting year to the Bideford Harbour Board Working 
Group. 

  
2. The Council should reserve the right to insist that the bond be reinstated for the ship to 

remain in the Harbour area if any defects where not rectified within a defined time scale. 

Page 17



 
  

 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Letter from the Chairman of the SS Freshspring trust -       Appendix 1 
 
Agreement between TDC and the Freshspring Trust -        Appendix 2  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation 24th August 2021 

Officers Consulted –Sean Kearney, David Heyes, 
Staci Dorey, Richard Haste, Councillor Hicks,  

 Reporting Officer 
: 

Richard Haste 

   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 18



 
  

 
 

 
Appendix 1 

 
 

Steamship Freshspring Trust 
 
The Steamship Freshspring Society (Now Trust, SSFT) was created in 2013 to preserve the historic 
SS Freshspring for the nation. In 2016, the Trust gained a grant of £155,000 from the National 
Heritage Memorial Fund, to carry out considerable works on the hull to ensure she was safe to tow 
and to remain in a permanent berth in Bideford. She arrived in October 2016 after a brief layover at 
Appledore Shipyard.  
 
On 14

th
 October 2016 SSFT signed a legal Agreement with Torridge District Council (TDC) which 

regulated the terms and conditions under which the ship would be berthed at Bideford. Because 
TDC had previously been faced with the cost of removing abandoned boats from the harbour, part 
of the Agreement involved SSFT lodging £9,000 with TDC  payable in three annual instalments of 
£3,000 as a Bond to act as ‘surety’ against potential removal costs. SSFT paid the first £3,000 on 
signing the Agreement but, although SSFT had set the funds aside to pay the balance, TDC never 
asked for the second or third payments. 
 
SSFT expects to dry-dock the ship every 5/6 years to ensure that the ship remains in sound and 
seaworthy condition. In April 2021 the ship will be moved to Harland and Wolff’s (H&W) shipyard at 
Appledore where H&W will jet wash the hull, carry out a full survey, make any repairs necessary 
and then repaint so that the ship can be returned to its berth on the quay in mid May. During the 
time the ship is at the shipyard, SSFT’s volunteers will be working on the deck and other areas so 
that by the time the ship returns to Bideford it will be looking extremely smart and ready for re-
opening to visitors at the end of May. 
 
With the maintenance and restoration work that has been continuously undertaken since the ship 
arrived in Bideford, SSFT believes that it has more than adequately demonstrated that TDC is at no 
risk of having to remove the ship due to poor maintenance. SSFT therefore requests that TDC 
returns the £3,000 held and formally withdraws the requirement for a Bond under the Agreement. 
 
Other information about the Trust 
 
 SS Freshspring is a 121ft long steam powered ex Royal Fleet Auxiliary water carrying vessel, 
completed in 1947 by the Lytham Shipbuilding and Engineering Co as the last of 14 and only 
remaining example of her class.  
 
The ship is registered with National Historic Ships. Register no: 28 and is classed as being of 
extreme national importance. 
 
National Historic Ships Statement of significance: 
 
SS Freshspring’s form reflects absolutely her role as a seagoing RN water carrier, but perhaps of 
even greater significance is the fact that with her pre-Second World War configuration, she is an 
extremely rare survivor of the type of general cargo vessel that was the work-horse of the British 
(and indeed other nations’ throughout the World) mercantile fleet from the early 1900’s to the 
1960’s. The only other vessel of similar appearance and scale in the UK is SS Robin of 1890, a ship 
that will never become operational or float again. 
 
It is recognised that the Trust’s proposals to maintain and conserve the vessel’s original form and 

Page 19



 
  

configuration, whilst opening her to the public, serves to enhance her significance. By doing so, the 
Trust’s aim is to preserve the past to inspire knowledge for the future. 
 
The ship is well embedded in the local community of Bideford and surrounding area as a must see 
attraction. Bideford is an area of considerable historic maritime significance and SS Freshspring is 
the only vessel in the port which reflects the many ships that visited and used to regularly ply the 
Bristol Channel and the coasts of Britain. Local people have a passion for our estuary, its heritage 
and have embraced the ship, with large numbers volunteering in some capacity, from painters to 
cake makers to Administrators and Trustees. All are a committed team. Volunteering provides a 
route to reduce social isolation and loneliness among many people. It engages, promotes teamwork 
and creates a great sense of camaraderie. People learn new skills and our older members actually 
seem to get younger as a result of volunteering. Bideford is an area of high deprivation and the ship 
serves as a focal activity and meeting point, supporting the well-being of many people from the 
young to the very old. 
 
Without the commitment of Torridge District Council to support SS Freshspring and granting her a 
long term berth, it is almost certain that the ship would have been demolished. Indeed, our initial 
funder, The National Heritage Memorial Fund were hugely supportive of this move to Bideford as a 
deprived area in need of activity. 
On arrival we worked to accumulate a team of Volunteers to look after the ship and to continue her 
restoration. Our mainstream education and career promotion work has continued throughout. 
The Trust has been successful in gaining considerable grant aid both to continue works on the ship, 
such as a restored wheelhouse and to enhance our work in education and the promotion of 
engineering and seafaring careers. 
We have one member of staff and we are appointing two more, with a focus on employing local 
people. At present we are engaging a Community Engagement Officer and a Community Learning 
Officer. Both posts will support our local community, wellbeing and work in schools. 
In 2019, our last year of opening due to the pandemic, we had 3,500 people visit the ship.  
We have some 60 Volunteers in a whole range of positions, All our Trustees are Local people and 
we have three Patrons, Earl Attlee, Rear Admiral Nigel Guild and Captain Kevin Slade. The Trust 
has a highly efficient Management Team and an employed Project Manager. 
Our plan has always been to dock the ship for survey and maintenance every five or six years. 
Freshspring has been in Bideford for almost five years and we have decided to support Harland and 
Wolff by booking the ship in to the Appledore yard, for survey, plating as required and a repaint of 
the hull. I believe that this highlights our determination that ship will never again become derelict 
and our determination to support our local economy. 
 
WE would appreciate having the bond returned as the funds would be valuable to us to ensure we 
can continue to employ our essential staff for the longer term. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 20



 
  

 
 

 
Appendix 2  

 
DATED                                                         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(1) TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

(2) SS FRESHSPRING SOCIETY 

  

  

 
 
 
 

"SS FRESHSPRING" 

 
 
 
 

  
AGREEMENT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
www.ashfords.co.uk 

 

Page 21



 
  

Ref CWH/048357-127 

Page 22



 
  

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS: 

Clause 1     Definitions and Interpretation 

Clause 2    Safety and Regulation 

Clause 3    Payment Terms 

Clause 4   Insurance 

Clause 5   Port Authority Rights 

Clause 6   Warranties 

Clause 7   Taxes and Duties 

Clause 8   Termination  

Clause 9   Notices and Communications 

Clause 10   Law and Jurisdiction 

Clause 11   Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

Page 23



 
  

 

This Agreement is made the  …. day of ……….. 2016 

BETWEEN: 

Torridge District Council of Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon, EX39 2QG (hereinafter referred to 

"TDC") and 

Steamship Freshspring Society of Little Cleave, Lower Cleave, Northam, Devon, EX39 2RH 

(hereinafter referred to as "SSFS").  

Hereinafter referred to as the "Parties" or individually the "Party". 

WHEREAS: 

A. TDC has agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to provide facilities 

for the SS Freshspring at a nominated berth in Bideford subject always to the requirements 

and obligations of TDC for a determinable period of time provided always the Vessel 

remains in a seaworthy condition. 

B. SSFS is, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, willing to grant a first priority mortgage 

against the security of the Vessel to TDC in addition to the deposit of £9,000 (nine thousand 

pounds) into the account of TDC to be held to the order of both Parties. The sum shall be 

payable in accordance with clause 3.1. 

C. SSFS have acknowledged the importance of ensuring the Vessel is properly insured and 

also monitored on a regular basis by a qualified marine engineer surveyor who shall provide 

regular reports on the condition of the Vessel. 

NOW THEREFORE 

The Parties hereto have agreed and do hereby agree as follows:- 

1 "Interpretation" - 

Authorised 

Representative  

Shall mean the representation of either Party who has 

been nominated by that Party and the extent of 

whose authority has been advised to the other 

Party or to any Regulatory Authority to sign or 

Page 24



 
  

countersign on its behalf as required by the 

terms of this Agreement. 

2 "Consequential Loss" Shall mean loss of profits or loss of use, time or hire of 

the Vessel or for pecuniary or economic losses 

of any nature arising in connection with the 

Vessel or any accident or damage to the 

Vessel whether direct or indirect for wages of 

crew, port charges, towage, salvage, dry 

docking, charter hire, general particular 

average expenses or any costs damages or 

expenses including but not limited to loss of 

opportunity, whether or not the same is or was 

foreseeable on the date of this Agreement and 

whether in contract, tort (including negligence) 

strict liability or breach of statutory duty or 

otherwise by TDC in connection with this 

Agreement. 

3 "Certificate" Means the certificate issued in accordance with the 

Merchant Shipping Loadline's Act 1995, Part IV 

that the Vessel is seaworthy for towing in 

coastal waters. 

4. "Harbour Authority" Means the authority that controls the tidal waters 

between the old and new road bridges at 

Bideford spanning the River Torridge. 

5. "KM" Means Keynvor Morelift Limited a marine contractor 

based in Appledore, North Devon. 

6. "Day or day" Shall mean a Working Day unless specifically stated 

otherwise. 

7. "Regulatory Authority" Shall mean the Maritime Coastguard Agency ("MCA") 

or any other agency with which the Parties 

must comply in accordance with statutory 

safety requirements. 

8. "Vessel" Shall mean the SS Freshspring which is an ex-Royal 

Naval Auxiliary Water Tanker more particularly 

described in Schedule 1.  

   

Page 25



 
  

 

1.2 Index and Clause headings appearing in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of 

reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 

1.3 In this Agreement in the absence of any contrary provision any reference to a statute, 

including any statutory modification or re-enactment of it, and any and every order, 

instrument, regulations, direction or plan made or issued under the statute or deriving validity 

from it. 

1.4 References in this Agreement to TDC shall include TDC's successors in title, permitted 

assigns and personal representatives.  

2. Safety and Regulations: 

2.1 SSFS will procure and at all material times ensure that a satisfactory report is 

available from its appointed surveyor, R Pearce & Co Limited of Falmouth that the 

Vessel is, and remains in, a seaworthy state in accordance with all Regulatory 

Authorities requirements. 

2.2 Prior to the Vessel carrying out its delivery voyage to Bideford SSFS shall produce 

and have approved by TDC, a Certificate showing that the Vessel has been 

approved for towing by a Regulatory Authority. 

2.3 SSFS shall provide proof of insurance for the voyage and mooring alongside in 

Bideford prior to the commencement of the voyage in accordance with clause 4 

herein. 

2.4 SSFS shall arrange, procure and pay for a regular annual survey of the Vessel in 

order to evidence its on-going seaworthiness. A copy of that report shall be made 

available to TDC and, if so required, TDC may, providing 7 Days' notice is given to 

SSFS, conduct its own survey of the vessel at any reasonable time. 

3. Payment Terms: 

3.1 SSFS will, on signing this Agreement pay the sum of £3,000 (three thousand pounds) 

into an account nominated by TDC. Subsequent payments of £3,000 (three thousand 

pounds) shall be made on or before 30th October and 30th November 2016. 

Page 26



 
  

3.2 The monies held shall be released without any deduction or set off on reasonable 

request by TDC and can if necessary be used to assist and/or contribute to the 

maintenance or insurance of the Vessel, such request shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. 

3.3 In consideration of the benefits being granted to SSFS, TDC is permitted to enter into 

a Mortgage Deed regulated by a Deed of Covenants by way of a first priority charge 

over the security of the Vessel. Additionally TDC shall be permitted to enter the 

charge at the Registrar General of Shipping and Seaman provided always the Vessel 

is first registered on Part 1 of the UK Registry. 

4. Insurance: 

4.1 From the date of this Agreement until termination, the Vessel, machinery and 

equipment on board, including all items owned by SSFS, will be at the risk of SSFS 

which shall at its own expense, at all material times, keep the same insured for a sum 

not less than the Vessel's market value. 

4.2 The insurance will be placed with insurers carrying out business in the United 

Kingdom in accordance with the Institute of London Underwriters standard terms and 

conditions and in addition to full cover for hull and machinery insurance shall include, 

but not be limited to, cover for all wreck removal expenses (without a limit of liability), 

pollution and environmental expenses (of whatever kind and howsoever arising), 

claims by any third parties, including the Environment Agency in respect of damage 

and/or repair required to the Vessel, the relocation, modification and replacement of 

property belonging to TDC as a result of any claims or complaints by third parties in 

respect of damage, and a provision for TDC's legal costs to be paid in the event of 

any claim(s).  

4.3 TDC and SSFS, shall be joint assured on the policy but at all material times the 

premium shall be paid by SSFS and they shall ensure the policy's timely renewal. 

4.4 In the event of an actual constructive or arranged total loss of the Vessel TDC shall, 

in the first instance, be entitled to repayment of all sums due to it under this 

Agreement whereupon the balance will be payable to SSFS. 

4.5 In the event of any claims being made under the terms of the insurance policies, 

SSFS shall procure that appointed contractors operate with due diligence as to all 

Page 27



 
  

damage and replace or repair any unfit  materials or goods which have been 

destroyed or damaged, and remove and dispose of any debris and proceeds as a 

result of that damage. 

4.6 SSFS undertakes to indemnify TDC against all losses and liabilities, costs claims and 

damages that may arise out of any damage to the environment as defined in the 

Environment Protection Act 1990 (as amended). 

5. Port Authority Rights: 

5.1 SSFS must allow the harbour master and any related Harbour or Regulatory 

Authority, its agents and workman access at all times to the Vessel, if so required, 

and SSFS shall not impede, fetter or interfere with the day to day work of these 

Authorities. 

5.2 SSFS must also comply with any orders, directions or regulations implemented by 

the Harbour Authority and respond within 7 days to any notice that is served on it by 

that authority. 

5.3 In the event of a claim by SSFS against TDC, any such claim shall exclude 

Consequential Loss. 

6. Warranties: 

6.1 SSFS warrant that it is the sole beneficial owner of all 64/64 shares in the Vessel and 

will not dispose, sell or otherwise transfer any shares in that Vessel without the prior 

written permission of TDC. 

6.2 TDC warrants that it will provide services commensurate with a responsible district 

council and will at all material times provide adequate berthing and other facilities, 

provided always, that agreement is reached in respect of reasonable berthing (and 

other) dues that may be imposed by TDC, Regulatory Authorities, and/or  the 

Harbour Authority. 

6.3 SSFS warrant that KM is a qualified and properly certified marine contractor. 

7. Taxes and Duties: 

Page 28



 
  

7.1 SSFS shall be responsible for any tax, duty, fee or similar charge in relation to the 

Vessel. 

7.2 SSFS will also pay all fees, duties and expenses in connection with any finance 

agreement or mortgage facilities required by it in respect of the Vessel. 

7.3 For the avoidance of doubt SSFS shall be responsible for any VAT or similar taxes 

that may arise in respect of the ownership and control of the Vessel.  

8. Termination Provision: 

8.1 If there is a breach by TDC of any provision of this Agreement, where such breach 

expressly entitles SSFS to terminate this Agreement, or there is a breach of any 

other material provision of this Agreement that is incapable of rectification within 30 

Days then, SSFS may terminate this Agreement by written notice to TDC. 

8.2 If SSFS fails to pay any sum due to TDC under the terms of this Agreement, or 

commits any breach of SSFS's obligations hereunder, TDC shall give to SSFS notice 

in writing specifying the breach complained of and the action which TDC reasonably 

considers necessary to rectify the breach. Failing compliance within 30 days of 

TDC's reasonable request, TDC may terminate this Agreement by written notice to 

SSFS. 

8.3 In the event SSFS ceases trading or has a liquidator, receiver or administrator 

appointed, TDC shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement by giving notice to 

SSFS or to the liquidator or administrator (as the case may be) to the effect that, 

TDC shall be entitled to exercise its rights as first priority mortgagee and that the 

liquidator or administrator will not have a prior lien over the Vessel or its equipment, 

materials or machinery. 

9. Notices and Communications: 

9.1 Unless otherwise expressly agreed between the Parties all notices and 

communications required under this Agreement shall be given in writing and sent by 

e-mail or post and shall be addressed to TDC at:- 

 Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon, EX39 2QG 

 E-mail - Jamie.hollis@torridge.gov.uk 

Page 29

mailto:Jamie.hollis@torridge.gov.uk


 
  

 Telephone - 01237 428701 

 For the Attention of Mr Jamie Hollis 

 

 And to: 

 SSFS at: 

 

 Little Cleave, Lower Cleave, Northam Devon EX39 2RH 

 E-mail - info@ssfreshspring.co.uk 

 Telephone - 01237 479730 

 For the Attention of ………………… 

 

9.2 Any formal notice given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been duly 

given or made to be sent by post, 4 Days after the date of posting and if sent by e-

mail on the day of transmission. 

 

10. Law and Jurisdiction: 

  

10.1 The Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with English law. 

 

10.2 Both Parties shall, in the event of any dispute, attempt to mediate the same and 

appoint an accredited mediator in order to resolve all issues arising out of that 

dispute. Failing a resolution, a dispute shall be submitted to and settled by arbitration 

proceedings. Such arbitration shall be conducted in Bideford (or such other place as 

may be agreed in writing between the Parties) by a single arbitrator to be appointed 

by agreement between the Parties or failing agreement on the arbitrator by three 

arbitrators, one to be appointed by each Party and another chosen by the two 

arbitrators appointed. Any such reference shall be a submission to arbitration in 

accordance with the Arbitration Act 1996 or any statutory variation, modification or re-

enactment thereof and the time being in force. The arbitration shall be conducted 

under the rules of the London Maritime Arbitrators Association and any written award 

shall be in English and binding on both Parties. 

 

10.3 The Parties agree that the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall not 

apply to this Agreement and for the avoidance of doubt the Parties do not intend the 

terms of this Agreement to be enforceable by any third party. 

 

11. Miscellaneous Provisions:- 

Page 30

mailto:info@ssfreshspring.co.uk


 
  

 

11.1 Neither of the Parties hereto shall be entitled to assign, transfer, novate or sub-

contract any of its rights or duties hereunder without the written permission of the 

other Party. 

 

11.2 SSFS shall at all material times be responsible for the sub-contractors and/or agents 

and remain at all times liable for their acts or omissions to act. 

 

11.3 This Agreement shall not be amended or varied save unless the Parties expressly 

agree by their duly Authorised Representatives to amend the Agreement which must 

be evidenced in writing and expressly stated to amend this Agreement. 

 

11.4 This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between TDC and SSFS in relation 

to the Vessel and neither Party places any reliance whatsoever on any 

representations, statements or understandings whether oral or in writing, made prior 

to the date of the execution of this Agreement other than those representations, 

agreements or statements expressly incorporated into this Agreement. 

 

11.5 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counter parts, each of which is 

an original and all of which together refers to the same Agreement. 

 

11.6 Save where agreed in writing, the Parties, shall keep the terms of this Agreement 

confidential as between the Parties. 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have executed this agreement by the duly Authorised 

Representatives. 

SIGNED ……………………………………..  SIGNED ……………………………………………. 

PRINTED NAME …………………………  PRINTED NAME ………………………………. 

DATED ………………………………………..  DATED ……………………………………………. 

For and on behalf of TDC   For and on behalf of the SSFS 

In the presence of:    In the presence of:- 

SIGNED ……………………………………….  SIGNED ……………………………………………. 

Page 31



 
  

PRINTED NAME …………………………..  PRINTED NAME ………………………………. 

DATED…………………………………………  DATED …………………………………………….. 

For and on behalf of the TDC   For and on behalf of the SSFS 

Page 32



 
  

 

SCHEDULE 1 

 

 

 

Page 33



 
  

Agenda Item 

REPORT OF:   Head of Communities and Place 

 

To:                   Community & Resources Committee 

 

Subject:           Leisure contractor pricing proposals 2021/22 

 

Date:                6th September 2021 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  For Members to determine and agree the proposed 2021/2022 

pricing arrangements of its leisure contractors 1610.  
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Annually the fees and charges set by the Authority’s leisure contractors 1610 are amended and 
provided to the Authority to review, sanction or reject.  

 
2. REPORT 

 
Contractual pricing Arrangements 

 
The leisure contract management arrangements state that the Authority shall determine the 
maximum core prices that the contractor can charge for certain activities and services provided to 
users (The Authority’s Pricing Requirements). The authority’s pricing requirements for the use of 
and admission to the Facilities, their activity areas and activity programmes, which is inclusive of 
any VAT if applicable, and shall be the maximum charge made to users within a contractual year.  
  
The Authority reviews the Authority’s Pricing Requirements annually; changing them in accordance 
with (subject to rounding to the nearest 10p) the annual change to CPI and the Contractor shall 
implement any such changes to Authority’s Pricing Requirements agreed by the Authority initially on 
1st January each year during the Contract Period. The Contractor shall increase or decrease the 
Authority’s Pricing Requirements in line with the provisions of the contracts Services Specification.  
As a result of the Covid pandemic and concentration on reopening the facilities this review is 
happening later than it would in a normal year and therefore 1610 are keen to implement as soon as 
possible.  
 
In reviewing the Authority’s Pricing Requirements the Authority shall take into account any 
recommendations made by the Contractor. However the decision of the Authority in relation to the 
Authority’s Pricing Requirements shall be final and binding on the Contractor. 
 
Notwithstanding the above the Contractor may suggest changes to the Authority’s pricing 
requirements at any other time throughout the Contract Period. The Authority shall consider any 
such suggested changes and the decision on whether the Contractor can implement such changes 
will be at the Authority’s discretion.  
  

Page 34

Agenda Item 11



 
  

Any prices for facilities and services which are not defined by the Authority within the Authority’s 
Pricing Requirements (“Non Core Prices”) shall be at the discretion of the contractor providing that 
such prices do not in any way inhibit the achievement of any other requirement of the agreement. 
Such prices shall initially be set in accordance with the relevant Method Statement within the 
Service Delivery Proposal.  
  
The Contractor shall keep the users fully informed of current charges and any proposed changes in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contracts Services Specification. 
 
The contractor’s proposals for the 2021/2022 season are set out in appendix 1.  
  

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
The proposals are made in line with the agreed Leisure services contract 
 
Financial Implications 
The cost to facility users and Members of the Leisure facilities will be increased accordingly.  
 
The Council has agreed, on a discretionary basis, to support 1610 for losses arising from the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Any change to the charges will have an impact on the level of support 
that is likely to be requested by the contractor. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
Not applicable. 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
Ensuring a sustainable cost to the users of the facilities. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Concessions remain for those eligible members of the community. 
 
Risk Management 
Not applicable. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
Abiding by the agreed Leisure contract arrangements. 
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
 
Date of Consultation – 24/08/2021 
 
Cllr Cottle-Hunkin 
 
“The charges for Leisure facilities in Torridge are, in general, slightly cheaper than in other 
parts of the county. Having said that, given the covid pandemic and the economic impact this 
has had on local residents, I do not think that now is the right time to increase admission 
fees. 
 
In addition, given the number of complaints with regard to the leisure facilities in Torridge, I 
would like to see improvements to the service and facilities before any price increase is 
made in the future.” 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
  

4. CONCLUSIONS 

That the leisure contractors 1610 have amended the fees and pricing of their services in line 
with the contractual agreements laid out following by the relevant Authority representatives. 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 That the prices set out in Appendix 1 for year 2021/2022 are considered and set if members 
deem that appropriate. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUPPORTING 
INFORMATION 

 
 
Consultations: 

 
Date of Consultation – 24/08/21 
 
 
 
 

 

Officers Consulted – 
 
 
• Chief Executive 
• Head of Legal and Governance 
• S151 Officer 
• Lead Member for Community, Culture and Leisure. 
 
 
Contact Officer:  
HoC&P 
Background Papers: 

Page 36



Devon Price Increase 

 

Current Prices        New Price   

>TDC Contract       +0.7% round to 10p 

Fitness Studio 

>Fitness studio workout £6.20      £6.30 

>Fitness Studio workout Concession £5.20    £5.30 

 

Group Classes & Activities  

Fitness class £5.75       £6.00   

Fitness class Concession £4.60     £4.85   

 

Facility Hire 

>Pool Hire Commercial £80      £80.60 

>Pool Hire Club £67.50      £68.00 

Studio Hire £30       £30.00  

 

Swimming Activities  

>Adult Swim £4.30       £4.40 

>Junior swim £3.00       £3.10 

>Concession swim  £3.10      £3.20 

>Family swim  £11.00       £11.10 

>Under 3’s Swim FREE 

 Sauna £3.10        £3.20 

>Parent & Toddler  £4.30      £4.40 

Fun & Floats adult  £4.30      £4.50  

Fun & Float Child £3.30      £3.50  

Fun & Floats Family £13      £13.50  

>Swimming lessons Junior  £21.00 (5.25)    £21.40 (£5.35) 

These are actually priced per lesson and then converted  to a DD  

>Swimming lessons Adult  £22.00 (£5.50)    £22.40 (£5.60) 

These are actually priced per lesson and then converted  to a DD    

Page 37



 

 

Membership Options 

Current Price       New price  

Premier Membership Adult £36.00    £37.00   

Premier membership Joint (2 adults) £62.00   £63.00  

Premier membership concession £31.00   £32.00 

Premier membership corporate £31.00   £32.00  

Fit & Active £21.00      £22.00  

Swim & Sauna membership £27.50    £28.00  

Swim & Sauna membership concession £22.50  £23.00  

 

6 Month Annual Pay for 5 months get 6 months   

 

Premier Membership Adult       £185.00  

Premier membership Joint (2 adults)    £315.00  

Premier membership concession    £160.00  

Premier membership corporate    £160.00  

Fit & Active       £110.00  

Swim & Sauna Membership       £140.00  

Swim & Sauna membership concession     £115.00  

 

 

Additional (Torrington & Holsworthy per hour) 

Current Price       New Price  

>TDC Contract      +0.7% round to 10p 

>Sports hall hire £30.00     £30.30 

>Half sports hall £16.00     £16.20 

>Adult Badminton £10.30     £10.40 

>Junior Badminton £8.25     £8.30  

 ATP hire £38.00      £40.00  

 Under 16’s ATP hire £27.00     £30.00  

Page 38



 

 

 

Page 39


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 9 August 2021
	Minutes

	3 Action List
	5 Forward Plan
	9 Biosphere Nature Recovery Plan & Declaration
	10 Freshspring Bond
	11 Leisure contractor pricing proposals 2021/22
	1610 Devon Price Increase April 2021z


